CTCS
Solid Waste

Advisory Committee

September 30, 2021
10:00 a.m.



Agenda



9.

CTCées

Central Texas Solid Waste Advisory Committee (SWAC)
Thursday, September 30, 2021

Regular Meeting: 10:00 am
Agenda

Call to Order.

Public Comments.

Staff Update (pgs. 6-8):

a) Federal, State, and Local Updates;

b) Air Quality.

Action Item: Regarding approval of August 19, 2021 meeting minutes (pgs. 10-12).

Discussion and Action Item: Regarding approval of Fort Hood Ex-Officio members (pgs. 14-
16).

Discussion Item: Regarding draft RSWMP review and feedback (pg. 18).
Discussion Item: Regarding presentations by FY22 HHW event applications (pgs. 20-42).

Discussion and Action Item: Regarding scoring, selection, and allocation of funds for FY22
HHW events (pgs. 44-46).

Discussion Item: Regarding review of Scrap Tire Facility application (pgs. 48-56).

10. Member Comments/Discussion.

11. Set Next Meeting Date, October 14, 2021.

12. Adjournment.

The Central Texas Council of Governments is committed to compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA). Reasonable accommodations and equal opportunity for effective
communications will be provided upon request. Please contact the CTCOG office at 254-770-2200 24 hours in advance if accommodation is needed. Citizens who desire to address the
Board on any matter may sign up to do so prior to this meeting. Public comments will be received during this portion of the meeting. Comments are limited to 3 minutes maximum. No
discussion or final action will be taken by the Committee.



This page intentionally left blank.



Item #3:
Staff Update



7y Solid Waste Advisory Committee

September 30, 2021
CTC«s :

Agenda Item #3

Staff Update

a) Federal and State Updates

e Texas Recycling Market Development Plan (link)
e American Society of Civil Engineers (ASCE) 2021 Solid Waste
Infrastructure Report Card (link)
o Developed every four years, Solid Waste a C+ this year


https://blog.tceq.texas.gov/2021/09/02/dont-trash-that-tceq-releases-recycling-market-development-plan/
https://infrastructurereportcard.org/wp-content/uploads/2020/12/Solid-Waste.pdf

P Solid Waste Advisory Committee
‘ | ‘ ":; September 30, 2021
k=i
eSoUrce Agenda Item #3

b) Air Quality

Monthly Maximum 8-hr O3 Averages

90

80

NAAQS Standard (70 ppb)

Ozone (03) parts per billion (ppb)

40

--==Temple Georgia
30

==== Killeen Skylark
20
10

MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG

Compliance with EPA Ozone Standard: 3-year average
4th Highest Annual Value (Calculated on
Jun. 30, 2021)
2019 2020 2021
Temple 63 64 63 63
Killeen 67 63 65 65




This page intentionally left blank.



Item #4:
Meeting Minutes



CTCeG

SOLID WASTE ADVISORY COMMITTEE
Thursday, August 19, 2021
10:00 Am

Central Texas Council of Governments (CTCOG)
2180 North Main Street
Belton, TX 76513

Solid Waste Advisory Committee Voting Members Present

Chair Zoe Rascoe — Citizen Representative Second Vice Chair Duane Herrera — Bell County
Vice Chair Bill Parry — City of Gatesville Commissioner Johnny Wagner — Hamilton County
Justin Brantley — City of Temple Scott Edmonson — San Saba County

Marcie Seele — City of Belton Paul Daugereau — Industry Representative

Mark Hyde — City of Harker Heights John Trigg — Private Business Representative

Bill Gould — City of Killeen

Additional Attendees

Kara Escajeda — City of Nolanville Uryan Nelson — CTCOG PRS Director
Timi Dutchuk — Fort Hood James McGill - CTCOG
Jackelyn Ferrer-Perez — Fort Hood

1. Call to Order: Zoe Rascoe called the meeting to order at 10:04 am.

2. Public Comments: No comments were made by the public.

3. Staff Update: FY22 HHW Event Applications; Revised SWAC Bylaws; ltems Donated to CenTex Sustainable
Communities; Federal and State Updates; Air Quality.

James McGill informed the group that CTCOG received 7 applications for FY22 HHW events from Gatesville,
Temple, Killeen, Nolanville, Kempner, Bell County, and Milam County. Mr. McGill stated that one additional
revision was made to the SWAC Bylaws regarding the Texas Open Meetings Act language, this revision was
approved by the CTCOG Executive Committee. Mr. McGill shared that CTCOG donated some items to the
CenTex Sustainable Committee and noted recent solid waste related legislation for the SWAC to review. Air
Quality for the month of July was 59 ppb at the Temple station and 66 ppb at the Killeen station.

4. Action Item: Approval of the June 24, 2021 meeting minutes.

Paul Daugereau made a motion to approve the June 24, 2021 meeting minutes, seconded by Duane Herrera;
the motion passed unanimously.

10



5. Discussion and Action Item: Regarding Approval of Citizen, Solid Waste Industry, and Private
Sector/Business Representative Voting Members.

James McGill explained that according to the SWAC Bylaws, the group needed to reapprove or select new
individuals to fill the Citizen Representative, Solid Waste Industry Representative, and Private Sector/Business
Representative voting member positions. The SWAC asked if the current representatives Zoe Rascoe (Citizen),
Paul Daugereau (Solid Waste Industry), and John Trigg (Private Sector) were willing to serve another two year
term. They all responded affirmatively.

Bill Parry made a motion to reconfirm Zoe Rascoe, Paul Daugereau, and John Trigg as the Citizen
Representative, Solid Waste Industry Representative, and Private Sector Representative, respectively on
the SWAC, seconded by Mark Hyde; the motion passed unanimously.

6. Discussion and Action Item: Regarding Elections for FY22-23 SWAC Officers.

Zoe Rascoe explained the role of the three SWAC officer positions Chair, Vice Chair, and Second Vice Chair Ms.
Rascoe stated that the current officers, Zoe Rascoe (Chair), Bill Parry (Vice Chair), and Duane Herrera (2™ Vice
Chair) has each reached their term limit and must be replaced. The SWAC discussed who should serve as
Officers for the next biennium. Timi Dutchuk asked why Fort Hood is not a voting member, James McGill
explained that voting members are appointed by their entities elected official and Fort Hood does not elect
their leadership.

Justin Brantley made a motion to elect Bill Parry as Chair, Duane Herrera as Vice Chair, and Zoe Rascoe as
Second Vice Chair, seconded by Johnny Wagner; the motion passed unanimously.

7. Discussion and Action Item: Regarding the Resolution for CTCOG’s FY22-23 Solid Waste Application.

James McGill informed the SWAC that the Resolution is part of the FY22-23 Solid Waste Application and
Funding Plan. Mr. McGill explained that the Application and Funding Plan details how CTCOG will spend the
grant money over the biennium and is required to be submitted to TCEQ along with the approval of the
Executive Committee. Zoe Rascoe asked if approving the Resolution meant approval of the whole Application
and whether the SWAC would be able to review the Funding Plan before Executive Committee approves it.
Mr. McGill stated that the Funding Plan would be brought back for SWAC review prior to final ExCom approval.

Marcie Seele made a motion to approve the Resolution for CTCOG’s FY22-23 Solid Waste Application,
seconded by Paul Daugereau; the motion passed unanimously.

8. Discussion Item: Regarding AZB Draft Goals & Objectives for RSWMP Update.
Mike Carleton, with AZ&B facilitated a discussion with the SWAC on the draft Goals & Objectives list that he

drafted for inclusion in CTCOG’s RSWMP Update. SWAC members made various comments and
recommendations for improving the language and comprehensiveness of the Goals & Objectives list.

11



9. Member Comments:

No member comments.

10. Next Meeting: September 16, 2021

11. Adjourn: Meeting was adjourned at 11:37 a.m.

These meeting minutes were approved by the SWAC members at their meeting on

Bill Parry, SWAC Chair Uryan Nelson, CTCOG PRS Director

12



Item #5:
Fort Hood Ex-Officio
Members



7y Solid Waste Advisory Committee

September 30, 2021
CTC«s :

Agenda Item #5

Fort Hood Ex-Officio Members

Staff has received a request from Timi Dutchuk and Jackelyn Ferrer-Perez of Fort Hood
to become ex-officio members of the SWAC.

According to Article IV, Section 7 of the SWAC bylaws, ex-officio membership may be
requested in writing to the SWAC and is subject to approval of the committee. Terms for
ex-officio members are two years.

Action Item: Approve Fort Hood Ex-Officio Members.

14



James McGill

From: Dutchuk, Timi M CIV USARMY USAG (USA) <timi.m.dutchuk.civ@army.mil>
Sent: Thursday, August 19, 2021 1:44 PM

To: James McGill

Cc: Ferrer-Perez, Jackelyn CIV USARMY USAMC (USA)

Subject: RE: [Non-DoD Source] Reminder: SWAC Meeting (UNCLASSIFIED)

CLASSIFICATION: UNCLASSIFIED
James,

Per our conversation after today’s meeting, is it possible to add the following Fort Hood contacts to the non-
voting member list as Ex-Officio members, in accordance with the SWAC bylaws, Article IV.77?

Mrs. Jackelyn Ferrer-Perez
Sustainability Program Manager
Installation Management Command
USAG Fort Hood, TX
Jackelyn.ferrer-perez.civ@army.mil
Building 4622 Engineer Drive, Room 134
Office: (254) 287-8712

Cell: (254) 535-8557

Ms. Timi M. Dutchuk, P.E.

Chief, Environmental Division
Installation Management Command
USAG, Fort Hood, TX
timi.m.dutchuk.civ@army.mil

Building 4622 Engineer Drive, Room 132
Office:(254) 287-3891 (DSN: 737-3891)
Cell: (254) 319-8516

Requesting two persons for contingency and overall coverage as Fort Hood is a large facility and to coordinate
with stakeholders is often a large-than-one-person prospect.

Thank you for considering adding this item to the next agenda for the voting members to decide.
Happy Thursday!

VIR,
*¥*¥x**please note new email address below*****

Ms. Timi M. Dutchuk, P.E.

Chief, Environmental Division
Installation Management Command
USAG, Fort Hood, TX
timi.m.dutchuk.civ@army.mil

Building 4622 Engineer Drive, Room 132
Office:(254) 287-3891 (DSN: 737-3891)
Cell: (254) 319-8516

15



This page intentionally left blank.

16



Item #6:
2022-2042 RSWMP Review
& Feedback



Solid Waste Advisory Committee

T " " September 30, 2021
C C -

Agenda Item #6

Draft 2022-2042 RSWMP Review

CTCOG contracted with Arredondo, Zepeda & Brunz earlier this year to complete
CTCOG’s Regional Solid Waste Management Plan (RSWMP) Update for 2022-2042.
AZ&B has completed data collection, a gap analysis for the plan, and drafted a list of goal
and objectives to be included in the RSWMP. AZ&B attended the August SWAC meeting
to gather feedback from the SWAC on the draft Goals & Objectives plan.

Since the meeting AZ&B has developed a draft 2022-2042 RSWMP for SWAC to review.
A copy of the draft RSWMP is included in the packet. Michael Carleton with AZ&B will be
on hand to receive any feedback from the Committee on the draft plan.

Action Item: No action needed; for discussion only.

18



Item #7:
FY22 HHW Event
Presentations



7y Solid Waste Advisory Committee

September 30, 2021
CTC«s ;

Agenda Item #7

Presentations by FY22 HHW Applicants

The FY22 Call for HHW Event Applications was open from July 1 through August 12,
2021. During that time, CTCOG received seven applications from the City of Gatesville,
the City of Killeen, the City of Temple, the City of Nolanville, the City of Kempner, Bell
County, and Milam County.

The FY22 HHW event applicants will present their applications before the SWAC and
answer any questions from the committee regarding the events.

Action Item: No action needed; for discussion only.

20



HOUSEHOLD HAZARDOUS WASTE EVENT
Application for FY 2022

Applications are due to CTCOG by 5 P.M. on August 13, 2021. You may send
them via email to james.mcgill@ctcog.org, or mail a hard copy to:

Central Texas Council of Governments

Attn: James McGill, Solid Waste Coordinator
2180 N. Main Street

Belton, Texas 76513

CTCOG is located at 2180 North Main Street in Belton, Texas. For directions,
please call (254) 770-2200. Applicants should attend the October 2021 meeting
of the Central Texas Council of Governments Solid Waste Advisory Committee,
in order to present a tentative plan for the event, explain why their location
should be selected, and to answer questions from the committee. The meeting
will be at 10:00 and be held at the CTCOG offices. The Solid Waste Committee
will select the event locations based on the cases presented and funding levels.

Please fill out the questions below to explain why your entity should host a HHW
event. Additional space for questions can be found on page 5 of this application
and attach any support documentation that is appropriate.

Has your City/County ever held a Household Hazardous Waste Event?
Yes D No

If so, when? (MM/YYYY)
02/27/2021, 03/2019, 03/2018, 03/2017, 04/2016

If known, how many people attended?
389 in 2021; 437 in 2019; 441 in 2018; 342 in 2017; 333 in 2016

If selected to host an event, how many people do you anticipate will attend?

Please provide an explanation on how you got your answer.
400 to 450 - participation in the Gatesville HHW event grew 25% between 2017 and 2018, constant in 2019.

Residents in our region (particularly Coryell and Hamilton Counties) anticipate these events. 2021: 49.3% of participants came from

outside the City limits. In conjunction with Keep Gatesville Beautiful, we combine the HHW event with a City-wide cleanup

(residents can dispose of appliances,gently-used household items, and junked personal property simultaneously) providing an incentive

for residents in the region to also clean out unwanted paint, chemicals, and tires (#1 and #2 on list of collected items).

21



3.

In order of priority, list 3 dates between January 1, 2022 and August 31, 2022
when the event might take place, keeping in mind that a minimum 45 day

advance notice to TCEQ is required.
1. March 26, 2022

2. April 9, 2022

3. April 2, 2022

Please give the physical address of the event and describe the facility (how big it
is, how much land surrounds it, how accessible to main highways, etc.) where
the event would be held.

We will conduct the event at the Gatesville Civic Center/Sports Complex parking lot,

located at 301 Veterans Memorial Loop. It is located on U.S. Highway 84, 1/4 mile

east of the intersection of U.S. 84 and SH 36. It is a wholly-owned City facility on

16.7 acres with over 1000 linear feet of asphalt surface. Restrooms are available

on-site at the sports fields and Civic Center. A schematic layout of the site is

attached. This layout, refined over the last five HHW events has proven to

be very efficient. It supports multi-lane one-way traffic.

Each county/city provides the site and volunteers necessary to operate the
event. In addition, please indicate the amount of funding that your city or county
is willing to contribute towards the cost of the event. CTCOG will also contribute
towards the cost of the event. (Example, dollar amounts for HHW contractor, tire
collection, electronics recycling, etc)

The City's proposed FY 2022 budget contains $20,000 for this event (based on costs of previous HHW events;

The Coryell County Commissioner's Court contributed funding for the 2021 event - and it is anticipated they will

do the same for a FY 2022 event.

Our historic City costs for the past five events:

-Advertising: $857.06

-Tire Recycling: $4,173 (one of the most subscribed activities - Reliable Tires increased their price to $3,200 per trailer in FY 2021)

Clean Earth Disposal Cost CTCOG Contribution  Cost to City
2021 $32,868.76 $15,000 $17,868.76
2019: $31,037.15 $12,500 $18,537.15

22



Please elaborate on specific reasons why the collection event should be held in
your city/county.

Past HHW events held in Gatesville have attracted as many (or more) participants than other regional HHW events,

mostly from cities and counties contiguous to Gatesville/Coryell - validating that these individuals are

not likely to travel to a HHW event in another County. Participation stats from 2019 and 2021:

2021 (388 Participants)

- Gatesville: 52% (201)

-Coryell County (outside City limits): 37% (144)

- Copperas Cove: 2% (8)

-Hamilton: 3% (13)

- Bell County: 4% (16)

2019 (437 Participants)

- Gatesville: 82%

- Copperas Cove: 1%

- Coryell County (incl. unincorporated cities): 8%

- Hamilton: 1%

- Bell County: 1%

The City of Gatesville's HHW events start earlier than most, are well-organized and executed,

and participants can expeditiously and efficiently drop off HHW depending on what they have

as opposed to waiting in a long line to drop off items at the end of the site.

Our HHW events are treated as City work days - so plenty of paid employees on hand to ensure

an efficient and effective event.




Additional Space for Answers:
Item 5. Continued

- We minimize the costs of disposing of used motor oil, cooking oil, anti-freeze, etc. by utilizing

the City's collection/recycling facilities located at our Utility Building.

- Our volunteer pool is drawn mostly from two sources: Keep Gatesville Beautiful and the City's

adopted units from 1st Army-Division West at North Fort Hood.

- We also have coordinated with Heart of Texas Goodwill to participate in our events for residents who

wish to donate gently-used household items, clothing, and electronics - specifically computers.

24



HOUSEHOLD HAZARDOUS WASTE EVENT
Application for FY 2022

Applications are due to CTCOG by 5 P.M. on August 13, 2021. You may send
them via email to james.mcgill@ctcog.org, or mail a hard copy to:

Central Texas Council of Governments

Attn: James McGill, Solid Waste Coordinator
2180 N. Main Street

Belton, Texas 76513

CTCOG is located at 2180 North Main Street in Belton, Texas. For directions,
please call (254) 770-2200. Applicants should attend the October 2021 meeting
of the Central Texas Council of Governments Solid Waste Advisory Committee,
in order to present a tentative plan for the event, explain why their location
should be selected, and to answer questions from the committee. The meeting
will be at 10:00 and be held at the CTCOG offices. The Solid Waste Committee
will select the event locations based on the cases presented and funding levels.

Please fill out the questions below to explain why your entity should host a HHW
event. Additional space for questions can be found on page 5 of this application
and attach any support documentation that is appropriate.

Has your City/County ever held a Household Hazardous Waste Event?

Yes D No

If so, when? (MM/YYYY)
052016, 062017, 022018, 062018, 072019, 062020, 052021

If known, how many people attended?
375-650

If selected to host an event, how many people do you anticipate will attend?
Please provide an explanation on how you got your answer.

350-500 based on previous year’s attendance

25


mailto:james.mcgill@ctcog.org

3.

In order of priority, list 3 dates between January 1, 2022 and August 31, 2022
when the event might take place, keeping in mind that a minimum 45-day
advance notice to TCEQ is required.

1..May 14, 2022

2. April 30, 2022

3. May 28, 2022

Please give the physical address of the event and describe the facility (how bigit
is, how much land surrounds it, how accessible to main highways, etc.) where
the event would be held.

The collection event would be held in the parking lot of the Killeen Special Events

Center located at 3601 South W.S. Young Dr, Killeen. This large parking lot can
accommodate the contractor site as well as provides significant space for a

vehicle queuing area to get patrons off the main roadway. It is less than one half
mile South from I-14 (Hwy 190) on a major thoroughfare, W.S. Young Dr.

Each county/city provides the site and volunteers necessary to operate the
event. In addition, please indicate the amount of funding that your city or county
is willing to contribute towards the cost of the event. CTCOG will also contribute
towards the cost of the event. (Example, dollar amounts for HHW contractor, tire
collection, electronics recycling, etc)

$25,000 towards the cost of the contractor, $1,000 for used motor oil recycling
cost, $1,400 for advertising

The City of Killeen is asking for $15,000 in grant funding to assist in the overall
cost of this event.

26



6. Please elaborate on specific reasons why the collection event should be held in

your city/county.

a. The City of Killeen (CoK) along with the adjacent City of Harker Heights, and
nearby Copperas Cove and Nolanville make up the largest population

concentration in the Central Texas Council of Governments (CTCOG) area,

approximately 180,000 residents. The Killeen site is only a 15-minute drive from

Nolanville and Copperas Cove. Belton, Ding Dong, Kempner, Salado, Temple,

Youngsport, and several other smaller towns in Bell and Coryell Counties are

within a half hour drive.

b. The City of Killeen would like to hold one event in FY 2022. CTCOG funding of
this event will provide greater water quality protection opportunities to the

residents in the watersheds of Clear Creek and Nolan Creek, and the Lampasas

and Leon Rivers.

c. The City of Killeen is able to help reduce the cost of an event by taking

possession of several materials which would otherwise be an expense to the

CTCOG, such as automotive oil, antifreeze, lead acid and other batteries

including rechargeable batteries, alkaline batteries. We also anticipate being

able to provide staff to receive and bulk automotive fluids and volunteers to bulk

paint, which will reduce costs.

d. The City of Killeen will provide additional newspaper advertising for the event
in the Killeen Daily Herald at least two advertisements of % page minimum, each.

The City also uses other media, including an electronic billboard, City cable

channel, City Facebook, and City Website, to spread the word on the event.

e. The City of Killeen will contribute $25,000 to help fund the contractor cost of

the event.

27



HOUSEHOLD HAZARDOUS WASTE EVENT
Application for FY 2022

Applications are due to CTCOG by 5 P.M. on August 13, 2021. You may send
them via email to james.mcgill@ctcog.org, or mail a hard copy to:

Central Texas Council of Governments

Attn: James McGill, Solid Waste Coordinator
2180 N. Main Street

Belton, Texas 76513

CTCOG is located at 2180 North Main Street in Belton, Texas. For directions,
please call (254) 770-2200. Applicants should attend the October 2021 meeting
of the Central Texas Council of Governments Solid Waste Advisory Committee,
in order to present a tentative plan for the event, explain why their location
should be selected, and to answer questions from the committee. The meeting
will be at 10:00 and be held at the CTCOG offices. The Solid Waste Committee
will select the event locations based on the cases presented and funding levels.

Please fill out the questions below to explain why your entity should host a HHW
event. Additional space for questions can be found on page 5 of this application
and attach any support documentation that is appropriate.

Has your City/County ever held a Household Hazardous Waste Event?
Yes D No

If so, when? (MM/YYYY)
10/2020

If known, how many people attended?
621

If selected to host an event, how many people do you anticipate will attend?
Please provide an explanation on how you got your answer.

650+. With the growth of the City, the need for the service, and the media attention this event receives

| anticipate quite a large turnout in 2021.

28



3.

In order of priority, list 3 dates between January 1, 2022 and August 31, 2022
when the event might take place, keeping in mind that a minimum 45 day

advance notice to TCEQ is required.
1. 10/23/2021

2. 10/30/2021

3. 11/7/2021

Please give the physical address of the event and describe the facility (how big it
is, how much land surrounds it, how accessible to main highways, etc.) where
the event would be held.

The event is held at 3210 E. Ave H in Temple. This is the Public Works Department service center and admin

building. The area under the carport is perfect for Stericycle to tape off and collect their items. Also, the area

coming into the center does allow the wrap around of vehicles to keep the line from posing any safety/traffic

concerns. Upon entering the gated area, the traffic is forked off to allow those with tires to split off, deal with the

tires, then join back in the line. With plenty of staff on hand, that is not an issue. The traffic is then routed to

the other different vendors. Once all items are dropped off, the traffic is then directed to the exit which flows

right onto the 363 Loop service road. (See attached map)

Each county/city provides the site and volunteers necessary to operate the
event. In addition, please indicate the amount of funding that your city or county
is willing to contribute towards the cost of the event. CTCOG will also contribute
towards the cost of the event. (Example, dollar amounts for HHW contractor, tire
collection, electronics recycling, etc)

The City of Temple Solid Waste Division has budgeted for matching funds in the amount of $10,000.00 for

the FY21 event. However, after receiving funds from Waste Management ($50,000.00) and CTCOG

($10,000.00) the City of Temple paid an additional $32,688.42. The expenses are broken out below.

Waste Management $50,000.00. CTCOG $10,000.00. City of Temple Tires $5,000.00

City of Temple Electronics $750.00 City of Temple Oil/Antifreeze $400.00. Stericycle balance $26,538.42.

We will utilize City sources for advertising and education. Billboard, utility bills and other media outlets along

with Temple Telegram. Funding request to the COG is to assist with citizens that utilize this opportunity and do not

live in the city limits of Temple. Past history indicates 66% of the citizens came from Temple. The funding will

assist in keeping this to a 7-county region.

29



Please elaborate on specific reasons why the collection event should be held in
your city/county.

The City of Temple partners with their landfill contract provider for an annual HHW event. The contract

covers the event for Temple residents for the most part. Temple would like to keep the event open to our

7-county region as a much needed disposal and educational opportunity. Temple houses the landfill in our

region with the exception of Fort Hood therefore, Temple is the prime location to host an event that allows

the residents of the 7-county region to participate.

Temple hosts an annual HHW event, so there is experience in set-up and activity. It is also one of the

larger cities where residents of the area shop and find medical services.

The request for funding assistance is to keep the event open to our region. Temple pays for the bulk

of the event, and provides an abundance of volunteers and paid staff.

30



HOUSEHOLD HAZARDOUS WASTE EVENT
Application for FY 2022

Applications are due to CTCOG by 5 P.M. on August 13, 2021. You may send
them via email to james.mcgill@ctcog.org, or mail a hard copy to:

Central Texas Council of Governments

Attn: James McGill, Solid Waste Coordinator
2180 N. Main Street

Belton, Texas 76513

CTCOG is located at 2180 North Main Street in Belton, Texas. For directions,
please call (254) 770-2200. Applicants should attend the October 2021 meeting
of the Central Texas Council of Governments Solid Waste Advisory Committee,
in order to present a tentative plan for the event, explain why their location
should be selected, and to answer questions from the committee. The meeting
will be at 10:00 and be held at the CTCOG offices. The Solid Waste Committee
will select the event locations based on the cases presented and funding levels.

Please fill out the questions below to explain why your entity should host a HHW
event. Additional space for questions can be found on page 5 of this application
and attach any support documentation that is appropriate.

Has your City/County ever held a Household Hazardous Waste Event?
|:| Yes No
If so, when? (MM/YYYY)

If known, how many people attended?

If selected to host an event, how many people do you anticipate will attend?

Please provide an explanation on how you got your answer.
As this would be the first event hosted in Kempner it is very hard to estimate. My best guess is a

few hundred might if we advertise well. | have posted this to our city Facebook page and the

responce has been overwhelmingly positive of the need for this type of event in our city and for

the surrounding community.

31



3.

In order of priority, list 3 dates between January 1, 2022 and August 31, 2022
when the event might take place, keeping in mind that a minimum 45 day

advance notice to TCEQ is required.
1.3/19/2022

2.2/19/2022
3. 1/15/2022

Please give the physical address of the event and describe the facility (how big it
is, how much land surrounds it, how accessible to main highways, etc.) where

the event would be held.
The best option is our City Hall at 12288 E Highway 190, Kempner TX 76539.

Here we own two empy lots on the back side of the parking lot and the back side of city hall so we

can create a loop for people to pull in on peach st, they can have have drop off points for different

items 1 in the city hall parking lot, or they can keep driving down Peach st and turn right onto

Orchard St and have a drop off on the empty lot behding the parking lot and they can keep driving down

Orchard St and turn right onto Bill Brown St with a third option for item drop off. They can then

leave by turning left or right back onto 190 from Bill Brown St. City hall bathrrom would be open.

Each county/city provides the site and volunteers necessary to operate the
event. In addition, please indicate the amount of funding that your city or county
is willing to contribute towards the cost of the event. CTCOG will also contribute
towards the cost of the event. (Example, dollar amounts for HHW contractor, tire

collection, electronics recycling, etc)
City staff, our elected officials and the public such as Kempner Volunteer Fire Department would

provide the volunteers to help run the event. As for funding, we are a very small city with a very

tight budget so we would really be trying to contribute as little as possible to this event.

32



Please elaborate on specific reasons why the collection event should be held in
your city/county.
The City of Kempner has never hosted an event like this. This event would provide a lot of benefit

to our community and surrounding areas as it would help empty out what at times has been years

of hazerdous waste build up. It is also going to be a great way to advertise to the community at

large the benefits of working with CTCOG and all the programs it has. We are trying to integrate

Kempner, Lampasas County and the surrounding areas more into these programs so the public

can benefit. This would be a huge step in the direction of showing our citizens they are important

and no one likes driving a long distance with hazerdous waste. The Lampasas Dispatch Record

has already run a story about our attempt to get this event held here and the citizen response to

that as well as our social media outreach has been hugely positive and shows the need for an

event like this.

33



HOUSEHOLD HAZARDOUS WASTE EVENT
Application for FY 2022

Applications are due to CTCOG by 5 P.M. on August 13, 2021. You may send
them via email to james.mcgill@ctcog.org, or mail a hard copy to:

Central Texas Council of Governments

Attn: James McGill, Solid Waste Coordinator
2180 N. Main Street

Belton, Texas 76513

CTCOG is located at 2180 North Main Street in Belton, Texas. For directions,
please call (254) 770-2200. Applicants should attend the October 2021 meeting
of the Central Texas Council of Governments Solid Waste Advisory Committee,
in order to present a tentative plan for the event, explain why their location
should be selected, and to answer questions from the committee. The meeting
will be at 10:00 and be held at the CTCOG offices. The Solid Waste Committee
will select the event locations based on the cases presented and funding levels.

Please fill out the questions below to explain why your entity should host a HHW
event. Additional space for questions can be found on page 5 of this application
and attach any support documentation that is appropriate.

Has your City/County ever held a Household Hazardous Waste Event?
Yes D No

If so, when? (MM/YYYY)
20172

If known, how many people attended?
CTCOG tracked attendance

If selected to host an event, how many people do you anticipate will attend?
Please provide an explanation on how you got your answer.

Centralized turn in for the cities that have tires from illegal dumping or site clean ups.

We are requesting one to two trailer rentals, in exchange we will provide the personnel for coordinating the turn in.

34



3.

In order of priority, list 3 dates between January 1, 2022 and August 31, 2022
when the event might take place, keeping in mind that a minimum 45 day

advance notice to TCEQ is required.
1. November 2021 - if available

2. March 12, 2022

3. April 30, 2022

Please give the physical address of the event and describe the facility (how big it
is, how much land surrounds it, how accessible to main highways, etc.) where

the event would be held.
City Hall - 101 North 5th Street, Nolanville Texas

Trailer would be staged in the rear and is trailer accessible.

We would request the trailer for a week so that cities had several opportunities to coordinate a date/time

for drop off.

Each county/city provides the site and volunteers necessary to operate the
event. In addition, please indicate the amount of funding that your city or county
is willing to contribute towards the cost of the event. CTCOG will also contribute
towards the cost of the event. (Example, dollar amounts for HHW contractor, tire
collection, electronics recycling, etc)

Personnel to coordinate for trailer delivery, pick up, payment and collection of tires.

35



6. Please elaborate on specific reasons why the collection event should be held in
your city/county.

We have tires retrieved from Nolan Creek and other smaller dump sites. We do not have enough

to fill a trailer so we would make sure that surrounding cities had the opportunity to fill it.

36



HOUSEHOLD HAZARDOUS WASTE EVENT
Application for FY 2022

Applications are due to CTCOG by 5 P.M. on August 13, 2021. You may send
them via email to james.mcgill@ctcog.org, or mail a hard copy to:

Central Texas Council of Governments

Attn: James McGill, Solid Waste Coordinator
2180 N. Main Street

Belton, Texas 76513

CTCOG is located at 2180 North Main Street in Belton, Texas. For directions,
please call (254) 770-2200. Applicants should attend the October 2021 meeting
of the Central Texas Council of Governments Solid Waste Advisory Committee,
in order to present a tentative plan for the event, explain why their location
should be selected, and to answer questions from the committee. The meeting
will be at 10:00 and be held at the CTCOG offices. The Solid Waste Committee
will select the event locations based on the cases presented and funding levels.

Please fill out the questions below to explain why your entity should host a HHW
event. Additional space for questions can be found on page 5 of this application
and attach any support documentation that is appropriate.

Has your City/County ever held a Household Hazardous Waste Event?
Yes D No

If so, when? (MM/YYYY)
04/2021

If known, how many people attended?
119

If selected to host an event, how many people do you anticipate will attend?

Please provide an explanation on how you got your answer.
100-200

Every year we host this event. Every year we see an average of participants increase slightly.

37



3.

In order of priority, list 3 dates between January 1, 2022 and August 31, 2022
when the event might take place, keeping in mind that a minimum 45 day
advance notice to TCEQ is required.

1. March

2. April

3. May

Please give the physical address of the event and describe the facility (how big it
is, how much land surrounds it, how accessible to main highways, etc.) where

the event would be held.
Bell County Expo Center

301 W Loop 121, Belton, Texas 76513

Loop 121 connect directly to IH 35 exit 290.

The Arena itself seats 6,559 people. The huge parking lot is great place to setup a tire recycle event.

Vehicles easily drive through, drop-off, and drive out within a few minutes.

The parking lot is concrete, so rain or shine, this event will function with little to no impact to the public.

Each county/city provides the site and volunteers necessary to operate the
event. In addition, please indicate the amount of funding that your city or county
is willing to contribute towards the cost of the event. CTCOG will also contribute
towards the cost of the event. (Example, dollar amounts for HHW contractor, tire

collection, electronics recycling, etc)
Each year varies, but in the past the County has found sponsors between $2000.00-$4000.00,

In addition, the generous SWAC donation last year was $2000.00. We will be requesting $4000.00 for 2022.

Our 2021 final costs was completed. It totaled $25,000.00.

We used Reliable Tire as our Contractor. 2 Trailers were used at $6400.00.

Reliable Tire then picked up our surplus from county yard.

38



Please elaborate on specific reasons why the collection event should be held in
your city/county.

Bell County is centrally located and touches every surrounding SWAC membered county.

Bell County site allows easy drive through access, large parking lot area if a line was needed.

Our site will still functions during extreme weather, our workers will help stack tires and help unload.

We are willing flexible to move our event date.

This event is available to all county residents and surrounding counties that participate in the SWAC.

Public are expecting and looking for our event each year.

The demand for this event is increasing over last 3 years.

Cost is cheap for tire disposal, $2 for most and $15 for larger tires

39



HOUSEHOLD HAZARDOUS WASTE EVENT
Application for FY 2022

Applications are due to CTCOG by 5 P.M. on August 13, 2021. You may send
them via email to james.mcgill@ctcog.org, or mail a hard copy to:

Central Texas Council of Governments

Attn: James McGill, Solid Waste Coordinator
2180 N. Main Street

Belton, Texas 76513

CTCOG is located at 2180 North Main Street in Belton, Texas. For directions,
please call (254) 770-2200. Applicants should attend the October 2021 meeting
of the Central Texas Council of Governments Solid Waste Advisory Committee,
in order to present a tentative plan for the event, explain why their location
should be selected, and to answer questions from the committee. The meeting
will be at 10:00 and be held at the CTCOG offices. The Solid Waste Committee
will select the event locations based on the cases presented and funding levels.

Please fill out the questions below to explain why your entity should host a HHW
event. Additional space for questions can be found on page 5 of this application
and attach any support documentation that is appropriate.

Has your City/County ever held a Household Hazardous Waste Event?
|:| Yes No
If so, when? (MM/YYYY)

| don't think Milam County has ever done this. Certainly not in recent memory.

If known, how many people attended?

If selected to host an event, how many people do you anticipate will attend?
Please provide an explanation on how you got your answer.

300. We just did a tire clean up day and we had over 300 people bring in old tires for disposal.

We will probably have the same amount for this event.

40



3.

In order of priority, list 3 dates between January 1, 2022 and August 31, 2022
when the event might take place, keeping in mind that a minimum 45 day

advance notice to TCEQ is required.
1. March 1, 2022

2. May 1, 2022

3. October 1, 2022

Please give the physical address of the event and describe the facility (how big it
is, how much land surrounds it, how accessible to main highways, etc.) where
the event would be held.

We will hold the event at the Precinct Four headquarters located in Thorndale, Texas. The headquarter

is adjacent to Hwy 79 and makes and has excellent access. There is plenty of room for a drop off and pickup.

Each county/city provides the site and volunteers necessary to operate the
event. In addition, please indicate the amount of funding that your city or county
is willing to contribute towards the cost of the event. CTCOG will also contribute
towards the cost of the event. (Example, dollar amounts for HHW contractor, tire
collection, electronics recycling, etc)

We will have County employees on hand to assist with the unloading and loading of the waste.

We will also use volunteers, community service and maybe trustees. We will contribute up to $15,000.00 for the cleanup.

41



6. Please elaborate on specific reasons why the collection event should be held in
your city/county.

We have not held this type of clean up in Milam County in recent history, if ever. We get calls about this

type of clean up on a regular basis. We would promote the event to maximize the cleanup, using radio,

newspaper and social media.

42



Item #8:

Scoring and Selection of
FY22 HHW Events



7y Solid Waste Advisory Committee

September 30, 2021
CTC«s :

Agenda Item #8

Scoring, Selection, and Allocation of Funds for FY21 HHW Events

The Central Texas Council of Governments received seven applications for FY22 HHW
Events. The budgeted funding amount available for FY22 HHW events is $65,000 in
addition to the $2,944.65 of FY21 Earned Interest the SWAC decided to roll over to FY22
which brings the total amount available to $67,944.65.

Additionally at the June 23 meeting, the SWAC allocated $8,492.60 of remaining FY21
implementation funds to the City of Temple’s October 23 event.

SWAC members were sent all of the FY22 applications, as well as a score sheet to rank
each event. At this time, staff would like the Committee to review their score sheets and
discuss which entities will host FY22 events and allocate funds to those designated
entities.

All event applications and a summary of historical funding is included in meeting packet.

Action Item: Score and Select HHW Events for FY22.

44



Previous Event Funding

City of Gatesville City of Killeen City of Temple City of Kempner City of Nolanville (Tire) Milam County Bell County
City Contribution: $0 C ty Contribution:
Fy22 City Contribution: $20,000 City Contribution: $25,000 City Contribution: $15,000 L;L ::asnczulr?tn ‘555 000 (TBD) City Contribution: $0 (in-kind) |County Contribution: $15,000 $(1’:r(])g0 ontribution
— Funding Request: $15,000 Funding Request: $15,000 Funding Request: $15,000 p Vi ?3, Funding Request: $3,200 Funding Request: $15,000 -
Funding Request: $15,000 Funding Request: $4,000
Event Cost: $32,868.76 Event Cost: $43,481.62 Event Cost: ~$92,000 Event Cost: Event Cost: $25,000
ity: $17 .7 ity: $23,481.62 ity: $2 .42 : HR Y
Fy21 City: $17,868.76 City: $23,481.6! City: $26,538 P No Event County. County: $23,000
== COG: $15,000 COG: $20,000 COG: $15,000 COG: $10,000 COG: $2,000
# of cars: 388 # of cars: 376 # of cars: 619 # of cars: 300+ (over 10k tires)  [# of cars: 119
Event Cost: $58,258.50 Event Cost: $64,904.47
City: $43,258.50 City: $49,904.47
FY20 Event Postponed to FY21 CIOL‘:$$15,000 CIOL:$$15,000 No Event No Event No Event No Event
# of cars: 590 # of cars: 543
Event Cost: $31,037.15 Event Cost: $39,000 Event Cost: $75,383.26
FY19 City: $18,537.15 City: $27,000 City: Pending No Event No Event No Event No Event
- COG: $12,500 COG: $10,000 COG: ~$7,000
# of cars: 437 # of cars: 376 # of cars: 605
Event Cost: $24,954.53 Event Cost: $30,923.51 Event Cost: $61,199.18 Event Cost: $29,578.14
City: $14,954.53 City: $10,923.51 City: $51,199.18 County: $9,578.14
FY1 No E No E No E
18 COG: $10,000 COG: $20,000 COG: $10,000 o Event COG: $20,000 o Event o Event
# of cars: 441 # of cars: 292 # of cars: 502 # of cars: 148
Event Cost: $27,738.61 Event Cost: Pending
FY17 City: $6,738.61 Event Cancelled City: Pending No Event No Event No Event No Event
- COG: $21,000 COG: $5,000
# of cars: 342 # of cars: 499

45



This page intentionally left blank.

46



Item #9:
Review of Scrap Tire Facility
Application



Solid Waste Advisory Committee

T " “ September 30, 2021
C C -

Agenda Item #9

Review of Potential Scrap Tire Facility

CTCOG staff recently received notice from Roadrunner Express, LLC of their application
to TCEQ for a permit to process and recycle scrap tires. The facility is located at near
Moody, TX on the Bell County side. A copy of the notice staff received, and the draft
application Roadrunner Express submitted is included in the packet for your review.

TCEQ requests that the SWAC review these notices and applications for consistency with
CTCOG'’s overall goals, objectives, and the RSWMP, and provide any feedback to the
agency for their consideration.

Staff is providing an opportunity for feedback to the Committee at this time.

Action Item: No action needed; for discussion only.

48



Scrap Tire Facility Registration - Notification to Local Authorities

é! i
Notitication Date r hand-delivered date): (C/“ 9 < / QJ
,» 0 ‘
Notification to: (| o m\ 7%)(&3 ( ol {\ of Goven mMends

Poddiwnner F‘Xp 0sS, [LC

Customer Legal Name

has applied to the Executive Director of the Texas Commission on Environmental
Quality (TCEQ) for a Scrap Tire Facility Registration for a proposed scrap tire facility to

be located at: o . , ‘
M50 Dove RA Mody TV 76557

" Physical address of the facility

This notification is provided per the requirements of 30 TAC Chapter 328, Sections
328.63(d)(1) and 328.63(d)(2). Approval by the TCEQ Executive Director is required before
the start of the proposed scrap tire facility operations at the above-referenced location.

Prior to authorizing a scrap tire facility, the TCEQ Executive Director must consider any
timely written notification by a local government with jurisdiction over a proposed facility
that the proposed facility does not comply with local requirements related to managing
scrap tires and protecting public health and the environment. Such notice must include
adequate documentation of noncompliance at the proposed facility. The Executive Director
determines whether any documentation of noncompliance submitted is adequate.
Commients on the application, if any, must be submitted in writing to the TCEQ’s Waste
Permits Division within 45 days of the date noted above.

The Executive Director shall, after review of the application for registration, determine if
the application will be approved or denied. The Executive Director’s final action on the
application will be available to view at www.tceq.texas.gov/tires/pending-applications. The
applicant or a person affected may file a motion to overturn the Executive Director's final
action on this registration, which is a request that the commission review the Executive
Director’s action on an application. A motion to overturn must be filed no later than 23
days after the date of the final action. Information on how to file a motion to overturn is
available at the above web page.

For more information about this application and/or to submit comments, please contact:
Waste Permits Division, MC 126, Texas Commission on Environmental Quality, P.O. Box
13087, Austin, TX 78711-3087. The TCEQ staff can also be contacted via email to
tires@tceq.texas.gov or by phone at (512) 239-2335.

Submitted by:
(o Loz

Name of Applicant or Authorized Representative

4150 Tove R oady) 17 HS51

Mailing Address
(2D U 444

Phone Number

49
Template updated 10/2019



Texas Commission on Environmental Quality

Application for Scrap Tire Registration—
Scrap Tire Facility

Additional information, documents, and drawings should be securely attached and labeled with the
company/facility name. Submit the original and two copies of the completed registration application
and a completed TCEQ Core Data Form (TCEQ-10400) to: Business and Program Services Section, Scrap
Tire Management Program, MC 126, TCEQ, P.O. Box 13087, Austin, TX 78711-3087. For additional
information about scrap tire management requirements, please contact us by telephone at (512) 239-
2335, or by e-mail at tires@tceg.texas.gov.

1. Facility Name (same as Regulated Entity Name on Core Data Form)

‘Roa drwmer Express, L&

2. Type of Scrap Tire Facility - select all that apply

Processor - Activities include cutting, grinding, shredding, baling, crushing, splitting, and recapping
or retreading.

EZ] Recycler — Activities include separation and preparation of used or scrap tires for re-use.

D Energy Recovery — Activities include use as tired derived fuel.
D Other (identify):

3. Facility Location Street Address

Street Address [ %SO Dovc
City, State, le Code MO 17 / "X %55’%

County /Be,

4. Facility Mailing Address (if different from above)

Street Address
City, State, Zip Code

5. Contact Person

NameDiOkM LO%DU) &

s o RECEIVED
Phone Number (3‘5[/1} 405" SHO ob. 05 AUG 11 20m
. 00
Email Address /ot dvunnerexpeess 1250y WASTE PERMITS DIVISION
WPD RECEIVED ON: 8/II72021 TEXAS COMMISSICN ON
TCEQ-10297 (PROJECT MANAGER: Melissa Harrison EIMRQ;E%??&{;?J,, QUALITY
DUE DATE: 10/10/2021 50

TRACKING NUMBER.: 26318227


MHarriso
WPD Date Stamp


6. Consultant Information (if applicable)

Identify the consultant or engineer to be contacted about the facility.

Name (Oy1or LO%ODJO\
Company @M{amnc/ frpless LUC

Phone Numbe(QS“() Yos-1491
Email Address /0dul ranneY eSS 23 @76&(/100;.6%/\

7. Property Owner Information

Identify the property owner where the facility will be located. Applicants must submit a Property

Owner Affidavit (TCEQ-10299). A template is provided in this document.
Name Omo¥ ¢ Dianes Lotoya

Street Address {0 Dove A
City, State, Zip Code M@z{ji W%SW

Phone Numbe(@ﬁ"() Y9S- S3b
Email Address d{am,o.um’m. ’(féb!ja,@ tjahﬁ(h Com

8. Investigation or Enforcement Action

Is this registration application in response to a TCEQ investigation or Yes
enforcement action? No

9. Amendment to Existing Registration

Is this an amendment to an existing scrap tire facility registration? OYes @No
If yes, please provide the information below.

Registration Number:

Intent of amendment:

TCEQ-10297 (last revision 02/2021) Page 2 of 8

51




Number of Tires and Storage Method

Processors can store up to 500 whole used or scrap tires on the ground or 2,000 whole used or scrap
tires in enclosed lockable containers. A processor cannot store more than 2,000 used or scrap tires or
20 tons of tire pieces in total. Complete questions 10 and 11 about storage methods.

Recyclers and energy recovery facilities can have more than 500 whole used or scrap tires on the
ground or 2,000 whole used or scrap tires in enclosed lockable containers under the 30-day supply rule
(30 TAC §328.63). The 30-day supply is the amount equal to the highest documented monthly number
of used or scrap tires consumed in the most recent six-month period. A facility in operation for less than
six months must submit an estimate of a 30-day supply.

A storage site registration application is required for facilities that do not qualify for a 30-day supply and
intend to store more than 500 scrap tires or the equivalent in tire pieces on the ground or more than
2,000 scrap tires or the equivalent in tire pieces in an enclosed lockable container. Refer to the Scrap
Tire Storage Site website for requirements. https://www.tceq.texas.gov/tires/tires-storage

@Yes, a Storage Site Registration is required, and the application will be submitted separately.
GNO, a Storage Site Registration is not required.

10. On the Ground Storage (outdoors) - No more than 500 used or scrap tires or 5 tons of
tire pieces for processors.

How many used or scrap tires will be stored outdoors?

No mote dhan SO0 ey

How many tons of tire pieces will be stored outdoors? One passenger tire equals 20 lbs.

No more Hhon tons

11. Enclosed Storage (trailer(s), warehouse, etc.) —~ No more than 2,000 used or scrap tires
or 20 tons of tire pieces for processors.

How many used or scrap tires will be stored in enclosed storage?
No V\«or&jri“’“ ‘ J,000

How many tons of tire pieces will be stored in enclosed storage? One passenger tire equals 20 |bs.

12. Vector Control Measures

Describe the method for controlling vectors, such as mosquitos and rodents. Monitoring for vectors and
appropriate vector control measures must be applied when needed, but no less than once every two

weeks. A ;A . s
Romoviny 1L sile-el™ & covenns Hies

TCEQ-10297 (last revision 02/2021) Page 3 of 8 50



13. End Use of Used or Scrap Tires or Tire Pieces (check all that apply)

Identify the end use of the used or scrap tires or tire pieces. Provide the name and
registration number if applicable. Not all tires must be delivered to a single location. Different types of
facilities can be used. Include additional pages as an attachment as needed.

D Energy Recovery Facility
Name:
Registration #:

Storage Site

Name:W/’Mth{ 6(}9 &66/ LLe

Registration #:

@ Landfill
Name: ’)Z/M

Permit #:

W{a C:\J(*) (ﬂ‘/‘”%”

D Land Reclamation Project Using Tires (LRPUT)
Name:

Registration #:

DOther (identify):

14. Location Maps

Provide a map showing the location of facility in relation to a road intersection. Online mapping tools,
such as Google Maps or Mapquest, are acceptable.

Map is included as attachment # of this application.

15. Emergency Response

Provide documentation of arrangements with public or private emergency response personnel if facility
does not intend to provide its own firefighting personnel or system. Specifically, the application must
include a response letter from emergency response personnel stating they will provide fire protection in
the event of an emergency. Examples of emergency response personnel include local city or county fire
departments, and volunteer fire departments.

Name of public or private emergency response personnel:

Letter from emergency response personnel is included as attachment # of this application.

TCEQ-10297 (last revision 02/2021) Page 4 of 8
53



16. Notification Requirements

Applicants are required to notify local authorities of the scrap tire facility registration application to
comply with the notification requirements of 30 Texas Administrative Code Chapter 328, Sections
328.63(d)(1) and 328.63(d)(2). A template of the notice is provided on the next page of this
application. Complete the template with the required information and send it, along with a copy of this
application, by certified mail with a return receipt request. Submit return receipts to the TCEQ Scrap
Tire Program as part of the registration application. Provide the name, mailing address, and date notice
was mailed for the required local authorities below.
Return receipts are provided as attachment # of this application.
City facility is located in

heck if facility is not located within city limits.
Name of City Mayor
Mailing Address

Date notice was received

County facility is located in
Name of County Judge
Mailing Address

Date notice was received

Name of Local Fire Authority
Name of Fire Marshal
Mailing Address

Date notice was received

Regional Council of Government

You can find the correct regional council of government by visiting txregionalcouncil.org and searching
by county.

Name of Regional Council of Government

Mailing Address

Date notice was received

TCEQ-10297 (last revision 02/2021) Page 5 of 8 54



Signature Section

L Diave lozon , Ouoners

(print or type name of authorized sighatory) (title of authorized signatory)

certify under penalty of law that this document and all attachments were prepared under my direction or
supervision in accordance with a system designed to assure that qualified personnel properly gather and
evaluate the information submitted. Based on my inquiry of the person or persons who manage the
system, or those persons directly responsible for gathering the information, the information submitted is,
to the best of my knowledge and belief, true, accurate, and complete. I am aware there are significant
penalties for submitting false information, including the possibility of fine and imprisonment for knowing
violations.

Signature:

TO BE COMPLETED BY THE OPERATOR IF THE APPLICATION IS SIGNED BY AN AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE FOR THE OPERATOR

I, @j‘/ll/b& ZU@;K} , hereby designate OM@{ A)?@l/f@\

as my representative and hereby authorize said representative to sign any application, submit additional
information as may be requested by the Commission; and/or appear for me at any hearing or before the
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality in conjunction with this request for a Texas Water Code or
Texas Solid Waste Disposal Act permit. I further understand that I am responsible for the contents of this
application, for oral statements given by my authorized representative in support of the application, and
for compliance with the terms and conditions of any permit which might be issued based upon this

application.
(print or ffymn;;e)f operator or principal executive officer)
Signature: ( 4 %‘ T Date: g//%é /

s

TCEQ-10297 (last revision 02/2021) Page 6 of 8 -



Texas Commission on Environmental Quality

Property Owner Affidavit

1 .
I, @) dihex ZO M & , the owner of record of the property herein described:
Name of Property owner

1650 Dove P, Madsy, 7 %557

Physical Address /

: {
have all rights and covenants to lease, rent, or assign to Z){/ﬂ%j} Wd
the property described. Name of Appficant

i
I acknowledge that D A e~ é@?c)!va has, or intends to file for, a
Name of Apﬁficant

registration to operate a solid waste (whole used or scrap tires) recycling, processing, and/or
storage facility upon such property.

t
I acknowledge that the State of Texas may hold the undersigned and @)/L V2. 4’?5‘)‘9&
Name of Applicant J

either jointly or severally responsible for the operation, maintenance, closure and any required
post-closure care of the site and facility.

I acknowledge my responsibility to file with the county deed records, upon closure of the site, an
Affidavit to the Public advising that the land has been used for recycling, processing, and/or
storage of waste tires.

I acknowledge the requirement that the site operator/registrant shall have access to the
property described herein for a period of five years or until said registration expires, whichever
period is shorter, for the purpose of operation and maintenance of the site and for the conduct of
business.

B

WITNESS MY HAND on this Y day of____ P , 2l

NJ

Property Owner Signature __——=

Subscribed and SWOran?o\re meonthis ___ [ day of ﬁ”lfiglz/}ﬁ’ , 207
/LW L . 2 , for madenign County, Texas.
Notary Pub@ SignEfUF?

e B e W vt
s o) ", e omrasno e

Lo NA AYA
L pr:mtary Public

i STATE
iD#1

My Commission Expires:__ Dl }?4}2‘?

TCEQ-10299 (rev. 02/05/2019) Page 7 of 8
56



SWAC Member List



CTC

Zoe Rascoe (Chair)
Citizen Representative
Phone: (254) 913-1013

trascoe@hot.rr.com

Bill Parry (Vice Chair)
City of Gatesville

City Manager

Phone: (254) 865-8951
wparry@gatesvilletx.com

Justin Brantley

City of Temple

Solid Waste Director
Phone: (254) 298-5723
jbrantley@templetx.gov

Bill Gould

City of Killeen
Recycling Manager
Phone: (254) 554-7572

wgould@killeentexas.gov

Marcie Seele

City of Belton

Public Works Programs Manager
Phone: (254) 298-5668

mseele@beltontexas.gov

Noel Watson

City of Copperas Cove

Solid Waste Superintendent
Phone: (254) 547-4242
nwatson@copperascovetx.gov

Mark Hyde

City of Harker Heights
Public Works Director
Phone: (254) 953-5641
mhyde@harkerheights.gov

Duane Herrera, CFM
Bell County
Engineering Technician
Phone: (254) 933-5275

duane.herrera@bellcounty.texas.gov

Alternate: Bryan Neaves

Updated June 23, 2021

SOLID WASTE ADVISORY COMMITTEE

Daren Moore

Coryell County

County Commissioner
Phone: (254) 223-1001

dmcoryellcounty@gmail.com

Lewis Bridges
Lampasas County
County Commissioner
Phone: (512) 734-1431

lewisgail68@gmail.com

Johnny Wagner
Hamilton County
County Commissioner
Phone: (254) 867-2873

jwagner@hamiltoncountytx.org

Henry Hubnik
Milam County
County Commissioner
Phone: (254) 482-1739

hhubnik@milamcounty.net

Jed Garren
Mills County
County Commissioner
Phone: (325) 948-3397

commissionerpct2@co.mills.tx.us

Scott Edmonson

San Saba County

San Saba City Manager
Phone: (325) 372-3131

citymanager@centex.net

Paul Daugereau

Solid Waste Industry Rep.
Waste Management
Phone: (512) 272-6226

daugere@wm.com

John Trigg, PG

Private Sector/Business Rep.
Wilsonart

Phone: (254) 207-6827

jtrigg@wilsonart.com

NON VOTING MEMBERS
Cheryl Untermeyer

TCEQ Grants Manager

Phone: (512) 239-6700
cheryl.untermeyer@tceq.texas.gov

Tanya Gray

Keep Temple Beautiful
Executive Director

Phone: (254) 493-4000
tanya@keeptemplebeautiful.org

Trey Buzbee
Brazos River Authority
Phone: (254) 761-3168

tbuzbee@brazos.org

Kara Escajeda

Nolanville City Manager
City Manager

Phone: (254) 698-6335
kescajeda@nolanvilletx.gov

Velia Key
City of Copperas Cove
Phone: (254) 547-4242

vkey@copperascovetx.gov

Ryan Polster
Hamilton City Administrator
Phone: (254) 386-8116

adm@ci.hamilton.tx.us

Jeanie Harrison

Hamilton County Recycling
Phone: (254) 372-4572
harrisonx2@hughes.net

David McGinnis
S&M Vacuum and Waste
Phone: (254) 526-5541

smvacuumandwaste@hot.rr.com

58


mailto:trascoe@hot.rr.com
mailto:wparry@gatesvilletx.co
mailto:wgould@killeentexas.gov
mailto:nwatson@copperascovetx.gov
mailto:mhyde@harkerheights.gov
mailto:duane.herrera@bellcounty.texas.gov
mailto:dmcoryellcounty@gmail.com
mailto:jwagner@hamiltoncountytx.org
mailto:hhubnik@milamcounty.net
mailto:commissionerpct2@co.mills.tx.us
mailto:citymanager@centex.net
mailto:pdaugere@wm.com
mailto:jtrigg@wilsonart.com
mailto:cheryl.untermeyer@tceq.texas.gov
mailto:tbuzbee@brazos.org
mailto:kescajeda@nolanvilletx.gov
mailto:vkey@copperascovetx.gov
mailto:adm@ci.hamilton.tx.us

End of Packet



	Cover Page 2021.09.30
	SWAC Agenda 2021.09.30
	SWAC Minutes 2021.08.19
	SWAC Staff Report 2021.09.30

	fill_57: 
	fill_56: 
	fill_55: 
	fill_54: 
	fill_53: 
	fill_52: 
	fill_51: 
	fill_50: 
	fill_49: 
	fill_48: 
	fill_47: 
	fill_46: 
	fill_45: 
	fill_44: 
	fill_43: 
	fill_42: 
	fill_41: 
	fill_40: 
	fill_39: 
	fill_38: 
	fill_37: 
	fill_36: 
	fill_35: 
	fill_34: 
	fill_33: 
	fill_32: 
	fill_31: 
	fill_30: 
	fill_29: 
	fill_28: 
	fill_27: 
	fill_26: 
	fill_25: 
	fill_24: 
	fill_23: to fill a trailer so we would make sure that surrounding cities had the opportunity to fill it. 
	Please elaborate on specific reasons why the collection event should be held inyour citycounty: We have tires retrieved from Nolan Creek and other smaller dump sites.  We do not have enough
	fill_22: 
	fill_21: 
	fill_20: 
	fill_19: 
	fill_18: 
	fill_17: 
	fill_16: 
	fill_15: 
	 Example dollar amounts for HHW contractor tirecollection electronics recycling etc: Personnel to coordinate for trailer delivery, pick up, payment and collection of tires. 
	fill_14: 
	fill_13: 
	fill_12: 
	fill_11: 
	fill_10: 
	fill_9: 
	fill_8: 
	fill_7: 
	fill_6: for drop off. 
	fill_5: We would request the trailer for a week so that cities had several opportunities to coordinate a date/time
	fill_4: Trailer would be staged in the rear and is trailer accessible. 
	 wherethe event would be held: City Hall - 101 North 5th Street, Nolanville Texas
	3: April 30, 2022
	2: March 12, 2022
	1: November 2021 - if available
	No: Off
	Yes: Yes
	fill_3: 
	fill_2: 
	fill_1: 
	fill_0: We are requesting one to two trailer rentals, in exchange we will provide the personnel for coordinating the turn in. 
	Please provide an explanation on how you got your answer: Centralized turn in for the cities that have tires from illegal dumping or site clean ups. 
	If known how many people attended: CTCOG tracked attendance
	 MMYYYY: 2017?
	fill_92: 
	fill_91: 
	fill_90: 
	fill_89: 
	fill_88: 
	fill_87: 
	fill_86: 
	fill_85: 
	fill_84: 
	fill_83: 
	fill_82: 
	fill_81: 
	fill_80: 
	fill_79: 
	fill_78: 
	fill_77: 
	fill_76: 
	fill_75: 
	fill_74: 
	fill_73: 
	fill_72: 
	fill_71: 
	fill_70: 
	fill_69: 
	fill_68: 
	fill_67: 
	fill_66: 
	fill_65: 
	fill_64: 
	fill_63: wish to donate gently-used household items, clothing, and electronics - specifically computers.
	fill_62: - We also have coordinated with Heart of Texas Goodwill to participate in our events for residents who 
	fill_61: adopted units from 1st Army-Division West at North Fort Hood.
	fill_60: - Our volunteer pool is drawn mostly from two sources:  Keep Gatesville Beautiful and the City's 
	fill_59: the City's collection/recycling facilities located at our Utility Building.  
	fill_58: - We minimize the costs of disposing of used motor oil, cooking oil, anti-freeze, etc. by utilizing
	Additional Space for Answers: Item 5. Continued
	 MMYYYY_F0: 02/27/2021, 03/2019, 03/2018, 03/2017, 04/2016
	If known how many people attended_F1: 389 in 2021; 437 in 2019; 441 in 2018; 342 in 2017; 333 in 2016
	Please provide an explanation on how you got your answer_F2: 400 to 450 - participation in the Gatesville HHW event grew 25% between 2017 and 2018, constant in 2019.
	fill_0_F3: Residents in our region (particularly Coryell and Hamilton Counties) anticipate these events.  2021: 49.3% of participants came from 
	fill_1_F4: outside the City limits. In conjunction with Keep Gatesville Beautiful, we combine the HHW event with a City-wide cleanup 
	fill_2_F5: (residents can dispose of appliances,gently-used household items, and junked personal property simultaneously) providing an incentive
	fill_3_F6: for residents in the region to also clean out unwanted paint, chemicals, and tires (#1 and #2 on list of collected items).
	Yes_F7: Yes
	No_F8: Off
	1_F9: March 26, 2022
	2_F10: April 9, 2022
	3_F11: April 2, 2022
	 wherethe event would be held_F12: We will conduct the event at the Gatesville Civic Center/Sports Complex parking lot,
	fill_4_F13: located at 301 Veterans Memorial Loop.  It is located on U.S. Highway 84, 1/4 mile
	fill_5_F14: east of the intersection of U.S. 84 and SH 36.  It is a wholly-owned City facility on 
	fill_6_F15: 16.7 acres with over 1000 linear feet of asphalt surface.  Restrooms are available
	fill_7_F16: on-site at the sports fields and Civic Center.  A schematic layout of the site is
	fill_8_F17: attached.  This layout, refined over the last five HHW events has proven to
	fill_9_F18: be very efficient.  It supports multi-lane one-way traffic.
	fill_10_F19: 
	fill_11_F20: 
	fill_12_F21: 
	fill_13_F22: 
	fill_14_F23: 
	 Example dollar amounts for HHW contractor tirecollection electronics recycling etc_F24: The City's proposed FY 2022 budget contains $20,000 for this event (based on costs of previous HHW events;
	fill_15_F25: The Coryell County Commissioner's Court contributed funding for the 2021 event - and it is anticipated they will
	fill_16_F26: do the same for a FY 2022 event.
	fill_17_F27: Our historic City costs for the past five events:
	fill_18_F28: -Advertising: $857.06      
	fill_19_F29: -Tire Recycling: $4,173 (one of the most subscribed activities - Reliable Tires increased their price to $3,200 per trailer in FY 2021)
	fill_20_F30:          Clean Earth Disposal Cost              CTCOG Contribution     Cost to City
	fill_21_F31: 2021              $32,868.76                                   $15,000                     $17,868.76
	fill_22_F32: 2019:             $31,037.15                                   $12,500                     $18,537.15
	Please elaborate on specific reasons why the collection event should be held inyour citycounty_F33: Past HHW events held in Gatesville have attracted as many (or more) participants than other regional HHW events,
	fill_23_F34: mostly from cities and counties contiguous to Gatesville/Coryell - validating that these individuals are  
	fill_24_F35: not likely to travel to a HHW event in another County.  Participation stats from 2019 and 2021:
	fill_25_F36: 2021 (388 Participants)
	fill_26_F37: - Gatesville: 52% (201)
	fill_27_F38: -Coryell County (outside City limits): 37% (144)
	fill_28_F39: - Copperas Cove: 2% (8)
	fill_29_F40: -Hamilton: 3% (13)
	fill_30_F41: - Bell County: 4% (16)
	fill_31_F42: 2019 (437 Participants)
	fill_32_F43: - Gatesville: 82%
	fill_33_F44: - Copperas Cove: 1%
	fill_34_F45: - Coryell County (incl. unincorporated cities): 8%
	fill_35_F46: - Hamilton: 1%
	fill_36_F47: - Bell County: 1%
	fill_37_F48: The City of Gatesville's HHW events start earlier than most, are well-organized and executed, 
	fill_38_F49: and participants can expeditiously and efficiently drop off HHW depending on what they have
	fill_39_F50: as opposed to waiting in a long line to drop off items at the end of the site.     
	fill_40_F51: Our HHW events are treated as City work days - so plenty of paid employees on hand to ensure
	fill_41_F52: an efficient and effective event.  
	fill_42_F53: 
	fill_43_F54: 
	fill_44_F55: 
	fill_45_F56: 
	fill_46_F57: 
	fill_47_F58: 
	fill_48_F59: 
	fill_49_F60: 
	fill_50_F61: 
	fill_51_F62: 
	fill_52_F63: 
	fill_53_F64: 
	fill_54_F65: 
	fill_55_F66: 
	fill_56_F67: 
	fill_57_F68: 
	Additional Space for Answers0: Item 5. Continued
	fill_581: - We minimize the costs of disposing of used motor oil, cooking oil, anti-freeze, etc. by utilizing
	fill_592: the City's collection/recycling facilities located at our Utility Building.  
	fill_603: - Our volunteer pool is drawn mostly from two sources:  Keep Gatesville Beautiful and the City's 
	fill_614: adopted units from 1st Army-Division West at North Fort Hood.
	fill_625: - We also have coordinated with Heart of Texas Goodwill to participate in our events for residents who 
	fill_636: wish to donate gently-used household items, clothing, and electronics - specifically computers.
	fill_647: 
	fill_658: 
	fill_669: 
	fill_6710: 
	fill_6811: 
	fill_6912: 
	fill_7013: 
	fill_7114: 
	fill_7215: 
	fill_7316: 
	fill_7417: 
	fill_7518: 
	fill_7619: 
	fill_7720: 
	fill_7821: 
	fill_7922: 
	fill_8023: 
	fill_8124: 
	fill_8225: 
	fill_8326: 
	fill_8427: 
	fill_8528: 
	fill_8629: 
	fill_8730: 
	fill_8831: 
	fill_8932: 
	fill_9033: 
	fill_9134: 
	fill_9235: 
	 MMYYYY: 10/2020
	If known how many people attended: 621
	Please provide an explanation on how you got your answer: 650+. With the growth of the City, the need for the service, and the media attention this event receives
	fill_0: I anticipate quite a large turnout in 2021.
	fill_1: 
	fill_2: 
	fill_3: 
	Yes: Yes
	No: Off
	1: 10/23/2021
	2: 10/30/2021
	3: 11/7/2021
	 wherethe event would be held: The event is held at 3210 E. Ave H in Temple. This is the Public Works Department service center and admin 
	fill_4: building. The area under the carport is perfect for Stericycle to tape off and collect their items. Also, the area 
	fill_5: coming into the center does allow the wrap around of vehicles to keep the line from posing any safety/traffic
	fill_6: concerns. Upon entering the gated area, the traffic is forked off to allow those with tires to split off, deal with the 
	fill_7: tires, then join back in the line. With plenty of staff on hand, that is not an issue. The traffic is then routed to
	fill_8: the other different vendors. Once all items are dropped off, the traffic is then directed to the exit which flows
	fill_9: right onto the 363 Loop service road.  (See attached map)
	fill_10: 
	fill_11: 
	fill_12: 
	fill_13: 
	fill_14: 
	 Example dollar amounts for HHW contractor tirecollection electronics recycling etc: The City of Temple Solid Waste Division has budgeted for matching funds in the amount of $10,000.00 for 
	fill_15: the FY21 event. However, after receiving funds from Waste Management ($50,000.00) and CTCOG 
	fill_16: ($10,000.00) the City of Temple paid an additional $32,688.42. The expenses are broken out below. 
	fill_17: Waste Management $50,000.00. CTCOG $10,000.00. City of Temple Tires $5,000.00 
	fill_18: City of Temple Electronics $750.00 City of Temple Oil/Antifreeze $400.00. Stericycle balance $26,538.42.
	fill_19: We will utilize City sources for advertising and education. Billboard, utility bills and other media outlets along
	fill_20: with Temple Telegram. Funding request to the COG is to assist with citizens that utilize this opportunity and do not 
	fill_21: live in the city limits of Temple. Past history indicates 66% of the citizens came from Temple. The funding will
	fill_22: assist in keeping this to a 7-county region. 
	Please elaborate on specific reasons why the collection event should be held inyour citycounty: The City of Temple partners with their landfill contract provider for an annual HHW event. The contract 
	fill_23: covers the event for Temple residents for the most part. Temple would like to keep the event open to our 
	fill_24: 7-county region as a much needed disposal and educational opportunity. Temple houses the landfill in our 
	fill_25: region with the exception of Fort Hood therefore, Temple is the prime location to host an event that allows 
	fill_26: the residents of the 7-county region to participate.
	fill_27: Temple hosts an annual HHW event, so there is experience in set-up and activity. It is also one of the 
	fill_28: larger cities where residents of the area shop and find medical services. 
	fill_29: The request for funding assistance is to keep the event open to our region. Temple pays for the bulk
	fill_30: of the event, and provides an abundance of volunteers and paid staff. 
	fill_31: 
	fill_32: 
	fill_33: 
	fill_34: 
	fill_35: 
	fill_36: 
	fill_37: 
	fill_38: 
	fill_39: 
	fill_40: 
	fill_41: 
	fill_42: 
	fill_43: 
	fill_44: 
	fill_45: 
	fill_46: 
	fill_47: 
	fill_48: 
	fill_49: 
	fill_50: 
	fill_51: 
	fill_52: 
	fill_53: 
	fill_54: 
	fill_55: 
	fill_56: 
	fill_57: 
	 MMYYYY36: 
	If known how many people attended37: 
	Please provide an explanation on how you got your answer38: As this would be the first event hosted in Kempner it is very hard to estimate. My best guess is a
	fill_039: few hundred might if we advertise well. I have posted this to our city Facebook page and the 
	fill_140: responce has been overwhelmingly positive of the need for this type of event in our city and for 
	fill_241: the surrounding community. 
	fill_342: 
	Yes43: Off
	No44: Yes
	145: 3/19/2022
	246: 2/19/2022
	347: 1/15/2022
	 wherethe event would be held48: The best option is our City Hall at  12288 E Highway 190, Kempner TX 76539. 
	fill_449: Here we own two empy lots on the back side of the parking lot and the back side of city hall so we 
	fill_550: can create a loop for people to pull in on peach st, they can have have drop off points for different 
	fill_651: items 1 in the city hall parking lot, or they can keep driving down Peach st and turn right onto 
	fill_752: Orchard St and have a drop off on the empty lot behding the parking lot and they can keep driving down 
	fill_853: Orchard St and turn right onto Bill Brown St with a third option for item drop off. They can then 
	fill_954: leave by turning left or right back onto 190 from Bill Brown St. City hall bathrrom would be open. 
	fill_1055: 
	fill_1156: 
	fill_1257: 
	fill_1358: 
	fill_1459: 
	 Example dollar amounts for HHW contractor tirecollection electronics recycling etc60: City staff, our elected officials and the public such as Kempner Volunteer Fire Department would 
	fill_1561: provide the volunteers to help run the event. As for funding, we are a very small city with a very 
	fill_1662: tight budget so we would really be trying to contribute as little as possible to this event. 
	fill_1763: 
	fill_1864: 
	fill_1965: 
	fill_2066: 
	fill_2167: 
	fill_2268: 
	Please elaborate on specific reasons why the collection event should be held inyour citycounty69: The City of Kempner has never hosted an event like this. This event would provide a lot of benefit
	fill_2370: to our community and surrounding areas as it would help empty out what at times has been years 
	fill_2471: of hazerdous waste build up. It is also going to be a great way to advertise to the community at 
	fill_2572: large the benefits of working with CTCOG and all the programs it has. We are trying to integrate 
	fill_2673: Kempner, Lampasas County and the surrounding areas more into these programs so the public
	fill_2774: can benefit. This would be a huge step in the direction of showing our citizens they are important
	fill_2875: and no one likes driving a long distance with hazerdous waste. The Lampasas Dispatch Record
	fill_2976: has already run a story about our attempt to get this event held here and the citizen response to 
	fill_3077: that as well as our social media outreach has been hugely positive and shows the need for an 
	fill_3178: event like this. 
	fill_3279: 
	fill_3380: 
	fill_3481: 
	fill_3582: 
	fill_3683: 
	fill_3784: 
	fill_3885: 
	fill_3986: 
	fill_4087: 
	fill_4188: 
	fill_4289: 
	fill_4390: 
	fill_4491: 
	fill_4592: 
	fill_4693: 
	fill_4794: 
	fill_4895: 
	fill_4996: 
	fill_5097: 
	fill_5198: 
	fill_5299: 
	fill_53100: 
	fill_54101: 
	fill_55102: 
	fill_56103: 
	fill_57104: 
	 MMYYYY105: 2017?
	If known how many people attended106: CTCOG tracked attendance
	Please provide an explanation on how you got your answer107: Centralized turn in for the cities that have tires from illegal dumping or site clean ups. 
	fill_0108: We are requesting one to two trailer rentals, in exchange we will provide the personnel for coordinating the turn in. 
	fill_1109: 
	fill_2110: 
	fill_3111: 
	Yes112: Yes
	No113: Off
	1114: November 2021 - if available
	2115: March 12, 2022
	3116: April 30, 2022
	 wherethe event would be held117: City Hall - 101 North 5th Street, Nolanville Texas
	fill_4118: Trailer would be staged in the rear and is trailer accessible. 
	fill_5119: We would request the trailer for a week so that cities had several opportunities to coordinate a date/time
	fill_6120: for drop off. 
	fill_7121: 
	fill_8122: 
	fill_9123: 
	fill_10124: 
	fill_11125: 
	fill_12126: 
	fill_13127: 
	fill_14128: 
	 Example dollar amounts for HHW contractor tirecollection electronics recycling etc129: Personnel to coordinate for trailer delivery, pick up, payment and collection of tires. 
	fill_15130: 
	fill_16131: 
	fill_17132: 
	fill_18133: 
	fill_19134: 
	fill_20135: 
	fill_21136: 
	fill_22137: 
	Please elaborate on specific reasons why the collection event should be held inyour citycounty138: We have tires retrieved from Nolan Creek and other smaller dump sites.  We do not have enough
	fill_23139: to fill a trailer so we would make sure that surrounding cities had the opportunity to fill it. 
	fill_24140: 
	fill_25141: 
	fill_26142: 
	fill_27143: 
	fill_28144: 
	fill_29145: 
	fill_30146: 
	fill_31147: 
	fill_32148: 
	fill_33149: 
	fill_34150: 
	fill_35151: 
	fill_36152: 
	fill_37153: 
	fill_38154: 
	fill_39155: 
	fill_40156: 
	fill_41157: 
	fill_42158: 
	fill_43159: 
	fill_44160: 
	fill_45161: 
	fill_46162: 
	fill_47163: 
	fill_48164: 
	fill_49165: 
	fill_50166: 
	fill_51167: 
	fill_52168: 
	fill_53169: 
	fill_54170: 
	fill_55171: 
	fill_56172: 
	fill_57173: 
	 MMYYYY174: 04/2021
	If known how many people attended175: 119
	Please provide an explanation on how you got your answer176: 100-200
	fill_0177: Every year we host this event. Every year we see an average of participants increase slightly.
	fill_1178: 
	fill_2179: 
	fill_3180: 
	Yes181: Yes
	No182: Off
	1183: March
	2184: April
	3185: May
	 wherethe event would be held186: Bell County Expo Center
	fill_4187: 301 W Loop 121, Belton, Texas 76513
	fill_5188: Loop 121 connect directly to IH 35 exit 290. 
	fill_6189: 
	fill_7190: The Arena itself seats 6,559 people. The huge parking lot is great place to setup a tire recycle event. 
	fill_8191: Vehicles easily drive through, drop-off, and drive out within a few minutes. 
	fill_9192: The parking lot is concrete, so rain or shine, this event will function with little to no impact to the public. 
	fill_10193: 
	fill_11194: 
	fill_12195: 
	fill_13196: 
	fill_14197: 
	 Example dollar amounts for HHW contractor tirecollection electronics recycling etc198: Each year varies, but in the past the County has found sponsors between $2000.00-$4000.00,
	fill_15199: In addition, the generous SWAC donation last year was $2000.00. We will be requesting $4000.00 for 2022.
	fill_16200: 
	fill_17201: Our 2021 final costs was completed. It totaled $25,000.00. 
	fill_18202: We used Reliable Tire as our Contractor. 2 Trailers were used at $6400.00.
	fill_19203: Reliable Tire then picked up our surplus from county yard. 
	fill_20204: 
	fill_21205: 
	fill_22206: 
	Please elaborate on specific reasons why the collection event should be held inyour citycounty207: Bell County is centrally located and touches every surrounding SWAC membered county. 
	fill_23208: Bell County site allows easy drive through access, large parking lot area if a line was needed. 
	fill_24209: Our site will still functions during extreme weather, our workers will help stack tires and help unload.
	fill_25210: We are willing flexible to move our event date. 
	fill_26211: This event is available to all county residents and surrounding counties that participate in the SWAC. 
	fill_27212: Public are expecting and looking for our event each year. 
	fill_28213: The demand for this event is increasing over last 3 years. 
	fill_29214: Cost is cheap for tire disposal, $2 for most and $15 for larger tires
	fill_30215: 
	fill_31216: 
	fill_32217: 
	fill_33218: 
	fill_34219: 
	fill_35220: 
	fill_36221: 
	fill_37222: 
	fill_38223: 
	fill_39224: 
	fill_40225: 
	fill_41226: 
	fill_42227: 
	fill_43228: 
	fill_44229: 
	fill_45230: 
	fill_46231: 
	fill_47232: 
	fill_48233: 
	fill_49234: 
	fill_50235: 
	fill_51236: 
	fill_52237: 
	fill_53238: 
	fill_54239: 
	fill_55240: 
	fill_56241: 
	fill_57242: 
	 MMYYYY243: I don't think Milam County has ever done this.  Certainly not in recent memory.
	If known how many people attended244: 
	Please provide an explanation on how you got your answer245: 300.  We just did a tire clean up day and we had over 300 people bring in old tires for disposal.  
	fill_0246: We will probably have the same amount for this event.
	fill_1247: 
	fill_2248: 
	fill_3249: 
	Yes250: Off
	No251: Yes
	1252: March 1, 2022
	2253: May 1, 2022
	3254: October 1, 2022
	 wherethe event would be held255: We will hold the event at the Precinct Four headquarters located in Thorndale, Texas.  The headquarter
	fill_4256: is adjacent to Hwy 79 and makes and has excellent access.   There is plenty of room for a drop off and pickup. 
	fill_5257: 
	fill_6258: 
	fill_7259: 
	fill_8260: 
	fill_9261: 
	fill_10262: 
	fill_11263: 
	fill_12264: 
	fill_13265: 
	fill_14266: 
	 Example dollar amounts for HHW contractor tirecollection electronics recycling etc267: We will have County employees on hand to assist with the unloading and loading of the waste.  
	fill_15268: We will also use volunteers, community service and maybe trustees.  We will contribute up to $15,000.00 for the cleanup.
	fill_16269: 
	fill_17270: 
	fill_18271: 
	fill_19272: 
	fill_20273: 
	fill_21274: 
	fill_22275: 
	Please elaborate on specific reasons why the collection event should be held inyour citycounty276: We have not held this type of clean up in Milam County in recent history, if ever.  We get calls about this 
	fill_23277: type of clean up on a regular basis.  We would promote the event to maximize the cleanup, using radio,
	fill_24278: newspaper and social media.  
	fill_25279: 
	fill_26280: 
	fill_27281: 
	fill_28282: 
	fill_29283: 
	fill_30284: 
	fill_31285: 
	fill_32286: 
	fill_33287: 
	fill_34288: 
	fill_35289: 
	fill_36290: 
	fill_37291: 
	fill_38292: 
	fill_39293: 
	fill_40294: 
	fill_41295: 
	fill_42296: 
	fill_43297: 
	fill_44298: 
	fill_45299: 
	fill_46300: 
	fill_47301: 
	fill_48302: 
	fill_49303: 
	fill_50304: 
	fill_51305: 
	fill_52306: 
	fill_53307: 
	fill_54308: 
	fill_55309: 
	fill_56310: 
	fill_57311: 


